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Rock Hall

Frederick Co, MD

C. Mazurek

February 1999

Section 8.1

Addendum

Rock Hall is located at 101-C Dr. Belt Road, off of Furnace Branch Road, in Frederick Co,
within the Monocacy Natural Resources Management Area.

This property is part of the Resident-Curatorship Program within the Maryland Department of
Natural Resources, with the curators Jon and Sally Mullen undertaking the restoration. The house is
very well maintained, on both the interior and exterior.

The log outbuilding adjacent to the main house has been moved to a different location, with all
that remains on site the stone chimney. In addition a garage has been built to the east of the house and
landscaping, such as perennial beds, have been installed around the property. The superstructure of the
bank barn to the south of the main house has been lost, except for the remains of the fieldstone
foundation and a portion of the stone silo. A modern barn that appears to date from the mid part of the
twentieth century stands close by, and appears to still be in use for the storage of hay. The remains of
an iron furnace, with remnants of slag, lay to the east about }2 a mile through the woods.



Inventory Number: F . 7" 2
Rock Hall Tenant House
Frederick Co., MD

C. Mazurek

February 1999

Section 8.1

Addendum

The Rock Hall Tenant House located within the Monocacy Natural Resources Management
Area is no longer standing.
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DESCRIPTION F-7-2

CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
X exceLLENT —DETERIORATED —UNALTERED X_ORIGINAL SITE
—GOOD —RUINS X_ALTeRED —MOVED DATE
—FAR —UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL {IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

“The large, two-story, two-part main house was constructed of local

stone in 1812 by Roger Johnson, a brother of Thomas Johnson, Maryland's
first elected State governor. Of typical Federal styling, the princi-
pal facade is three bays wide and has a transomed entrance door occupy-
ing an end bay. The A-frame roof has a single brick chimney at each end
of the ridge line; a centered cross gable added on the front roof slope
in the mid-nineteenth century was removed several years ago but traces

of its outline can still be discerned. On the west elevation the fenes-
tration of the facade is repeated, but without a doorway. Visible alter-
ations in the stonework below the middle first floor window suggests that
a door might have previously occupied this location. Al1 of the windows
of the main biock apparently had exterior blinds but they were probably
paneled and not the existing louvered ones. On the interior the first
floor room configuration consists of three rooms (see plan), an altera-
tion of its original four room plan. The woodwork of the front drawing
room is the best in the house and incorporates simplified classical
motifs popular during the Federal period. It is obvious, however, that
some replacement of the woodwork has occurred and, in fact, some of it
may constitute later introductions. The stair is apparently original

and rises in two flights to three second floor bed chambers. In the
attic, accessible from the attic of the north wing, can be seen one of
the more interesting architectural features of the house. Heavily framed,
it recalls earlier methods of construction, employing massive principal
rafters, collars, purlins, and wind braces.

On the north end of the principal block stands a later, two-story, stuc-
coed stone wing which, it is believed, incorporated into its plan an
earlier detached or semi-detached kitchen. The facade of the wing is
covered Dy a two-story galleried porch. The cornice decoration of the
main block, consisting of ogee and turned moldings and applied fretwork
on tne bed molding, is continued over onto the cornice of the wing.
Although the cornice is of Federal character and probably original to
the main block its use on the wing provided a continuity of design. That
the wing is later is confirmed by structural documentation. The wing
contains two first floor rooms. The north room, with a large fireplace
opening, constitutes the original kitchen. Upstairs are two bedchambers.
Although there is a two-room, full cellar beneath the main block there

is only a partial cellar beneath the wing.

Within several feet of the north end of the wing stands a small log cabin
that appears to have been built about 1825-40. Although its walls and
roof appear to be contemporary to one another the first floor ceiling
joists were obviously removed from an earlier structure. A second log
building stands several yards back from the rear wall of the wing. It
has been extensively remodeled and is in an advanced state of deteriora-
tion. Its original purpose and date of construction are unknown. (The
possibility exists that both cabins were moved here from other locations
on or near the property.)

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY

‘
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.RIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
—PREHISTORIC —ARCHEOLOGY-PREHISTORIC —COMMUNITY PLANNING ~—LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE —RELIGION
—1400-1499 __ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC —_CONSERVATION —LAW —SCIENCE
—1500-1599 —AGRICULTURE —ECONOMICS — LITERATURE ——SCULPTURE
—1600-1699 X_ARCHITECTUFIE —EDUCATION —MILITARY —~SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
—.1700-1799 —ART __ENGINEERING —MusIC —THEATER
_X'l 800-1899 —COMMERCE _EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT —PHILOSOPHY —TRANSPORTATION
—1900- ——COMMUNICATIONS —INDUSTRY —POLITICS/GOVERNMENT —OQTHER (SPECIFY)

—_ INVENTION
SPECIFIC DATES BUILDER/ARCHITECT
1812 Roger Johnson

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE :

"The historical significance of the Rock Hall property is readily
apparent. Not only does the property have a-history of industrial use,
but also a close tie with the Johnson:family, who played such a major
role in the socio-economic development of the region. The house itself
is deserving of recognition as one of the few buildings in the area
which so adequately represents the ideas and ideals of the New Republic
as manifested in its architecture. Its simple character is consistent
with the rature of the region at.that time and is typical of a1mos& all
of the Johnson houses erected by that family in Frederick County."
Local residents have expressed a desire to have the property considered
for National Register listing and I can forsee no difficulties in this
regard, provided there is sufficient documentation for the furnace com-
plex and the development of the house and property throughout the nine-
teenth and early twentieth century (including alterations made to the house
by the previous owners).

IMemorandum of J. Richard Rivoire to Arthur C. Townsend

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY



EIMA]JOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES F-7-2

Grove, wjlliam J. History of Carrollton Manor 1929
Dwyer, Michael F. A Brief History of Rock Hall Part 1 of a two part series.

Rivoire, R. Richard Memorandum to Arthur C. Townsend Maryland Historical
Trust, on Rock Hall. 10-30-74

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
EUIGEOGRAPHICAL DATA

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE COUNTY
Maryland Montgomery
STATE COUNTY -
ES1FORM PREPARED BY
NAME / TITLE Cherilyn Widell, Sites Analyst
Frederick City Office of Historic Preservation 3/6/78
ORGANIZATION DATE
Winchester Hall, 12 E. Church St. 663-8300 ext. 266
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE
Frederick Maryland
CITY OR TOWN STATE

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438
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Description of Rock Hall (continued)

Also on the property, and within several hundred feet of the house, is a
large frame bankbarn. Although employing an earlier type of framing system
it was undoubtedly built during the last decade of the nineteenth century
(or even later). It does, however, join an interesting stone silo that
appears to remain from an earlier structure."l

1Memorandum of J. Richard Rivoire to Arthur C. Townsend 10/30/74



ADDENDA

In 1984 the Department of PMatural Resources contracted
with Joe Getty to conduct a follow-up survey of selected
historic properties on DNR lands. DNR funded the field
survey and photography but did not prepare finished copy.

The attached photocopy pages were forwarded to the
Maryland Historical Trust to supplement existing files.
All original material and photographs remain in the possession

of the Department of Natural Resources under the supervision

of Ross Kimmel (x3771) .
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RALL F?
ROCK B3N TENANT HOUSE -7-~

el

The Rock B=mm Tenant tlouse 1s a two—storx}thrcc—bay by one-
bay frame structure with a log ell,wang. Most of the materials
in the =tructure date from mid-to-late ninetecnth century. From
interior construction, it is evident that the log structure was
built first,perhaps in the mid-nineteenth century, and that the
frame main section was added in the 1860s-80s. The main section
of the three-bay main facade has a central entrance. Wood trim
and intcrior moldings also date from the nincteenth century.

The structure 1s an ell-shaped structure and contains no
fireplaces, only stove flues. There are fluc chimneys at each
gable end of the main section and at the gable end of the ell.

The main scction 1s constructced of two-by—{our framing with f{our-

by~four posts. Floor joists are two-by-cights. The structure is
. . ~ . . . . - .
laid on a field_ stone foundation. The original exterior shéthing
. o wde s : .
was # eight-inch wood siding. This has been covered with a

mid-twentieth century abestos siding. The central entrance has

a five-pancel door with a central herizontal panel and a two-pane
transom. Windows in the outer buays of the first story ef the three
bays of the second story are six-over-six sash windows. The
structure has a box cornexr and the roof is covered with &
corrugated sheet metal. The north gable end of the main section
hzs o <ingle six-over-six window on cach story and a small four-
pane window in the gable.qIThe site slopes slightly to the south
so that ithe south gable end of the main section has a basement
entran.¢ at ground level. Tt has six-over—six window on the first

and ccuvend story above the foundation entrance and a four—-pane



Wt Fa7-~2—

Rock ®ym Tenant liouse 2

window in the gable. The box cornice returns at the corners e,
Also on this gable cnd is a porch that extends half way to

the gablc and back through the total length of the gﬁégu There
is an exterior door onto the porch from the main section that
contains a five-panclegd door#ay. The original exterior Shéﬁhing
was applied with fully-mature wire nails. The structure had

corner boards and plain board f{rames around the doors and windows.
Six"'eenv\v.l— eighVees f2ut

The rear wing stood originally as a
structure. It was built slightly into the slope with a stone
foundatieon.  The structure was built of eight-inch wide logs

- - U'. - -
that were V-notched and then covercd in a chen*lnchﬁwood siding.
It doe- not appear that the ecast gable end of the structure
ever contained a fireplace. There is a brick stove flue chimncey
n the é(wh*.;.,,uf' [47 TPAY “f Hie et
at this end.  There 1s also a corner stalr @Btdpcerasped—brirck
Champrey -

The main section interior consists of a central stairway

with a small entrance foyver. A single room was located on each

e .8
side of tho stairway with a small emrpbeowsd underneath the stair.
Cﬂ\}m‘ (3 QJ

The woodwork on the interior ks~ noldsss window Erpame und door

framestypical of the late ninetecnth century.
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DRAFT--ROCK HALL TENANT HOUSE F:'7“2‘

Significance

The Rock Hall Tenant lHouse shows a vepresentative tenant
WVhle

structure for a central Maryland large farm. &a the main
housc ¢t Rock Hall is substantial with refined ornamcntation,
the tenant structure is quite plain and modest in ornamentation
and stylce. Originally, it was a sixtecen by eightecen foot log
‘house. It was constructed in a typical log housc style from
this area, built on a stonc foundation into a sloupe with ground
access to the foundation on the main facade. The leogs were
!—notchuJ with wide spaces filled with chinking. The attic
ﬁad a commoeon rafter roof and the platc was elevated above the
sccond-story floor joist by about threc fleet.

Also representative 1s the way this house was expanded
during the 1860-80s, The original log structure becarne an ell
for a largoer tenant house. This house was constructed of a wood
frame covered in wood siding. 1t had a two-room plan with a
central stair partitioned between the twe rooms.

The structure is in a deteriorated condition due to

water damage from leaks in the roof.
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The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
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The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of
individual property rights.
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42. "Bo. Hal¥._ This home of Roger Johnson, on the
Johnson furnace site, is said to have been built in 1812
with allater addition. It was built of red and white :
quartzite rock, also used to build the C&0 Canal 7 arch
agqueduct over the Monocacy, and was quarried on the
property. The oldest section remains stone, and the
addition has stucco over stone. Records show the stone
mason was paid $550 for building the shell of the house.
Window glass, still intact is said to have been made of
the property. Could it have been the Aetna Glassworks
at the Johnson's Bush Creek Site? The home i8 now being
restored by Mr. Jon Mullen, who holds a long-term lease.
There_are remains of a number of buildings on the prop-
erty including a grist mill and lime kilns. (State of
Maryland, Dept. of Natural Resources)

Urbana Civic Association

42. Rock Hall

1976 History and Legends of Urbana Election District.

43. "Labyrinth" - The date of the building ot chis home
is not known, but it does show on the 1873 map. The
main portion of the house is built of field stone and
has walls two feet thick, and 12 by 12 beams. The stone
was covered years ago with stucco, except for the north
end, where the upper third is covered with patterned
slate. The kitchen addition is of bricks which are said
to have been brought from England as ballast. The upper
front porch and decorative railings were a later addi-
tion. It is said there was a kitchen attached to the
rear of the house which was later removed. The kitchen
and living room fireplaces use the same chimney.

According to deeds the property has been designated
as Labrinth, (Labranth, Labarinth), McKaye Chance,
McKays Choice, None Left, Williame Chance, Red Oak Knoll,
Wileson's Discovery, Stony Hive, Strife Ended, Right and
Justice, and Plummers Delight.

The house has been owned and tenanted for the most
part by the descendants of Samuel Simmons, (died 1779)
and Belinda Simmons. A small cemetery at the corner of
Linthicum and Thurston Roads has a large stone for this
family.

Previous owners included Levi Phillips and Eleanor,
Caleb Knott, Josua and William Knight, William Knight
and Sarah, and William McKay. Sarah Knight, widow of
William, freed her female slave and two children by Writ
of Manumission on April 10, 1797.

(Dyker)

Frederick High School Press, Frederick, MD.

46

43. Labyrinth

47
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